Epsom & Ewell History & Archaeology

NEWSLETTER

2016, Issue 4

Society

September 2016

We welcome as new
members

Miss K Wood
Mr M Teasdale

Inside this issue:

June Meeting:
Epsom College and tt
First World War

July Meeting:
Archaeology of the
NESCoT site

August Meeting:

Walk around Woodcor

A Glimpse of Tudor
Epsom

Local finds

Forthcoming events

Chali

There has been a flurry of speculation over the perceived
implications of the Neighbourhood and Infrastructure Bill which

is connected to the Government declared intention of simplifying
the Planning System. No bad thing some might say with the long
lists of appraisals, assessment statements, impact evaluations
etc. that are required by the LPA and which | wonder are ever
actually read rather than just a tick in the box. Post PPG16 has
produced quite a bonanza for heritage consultants to satisfy these
demands, good for them. However, there is a fear that the
heritage issues may be a casualty and the simple requirement for
archaeological excavation or a W/B considered as over onerous.
We hope that any new climate will not diminish this such
requirement which in our case is done at no cost to the developer!

rrmanos Not es

| noticed that the hugely important Joris Hoefnagel watercolour

of Nonsuch Palace in 1568 appeared for sale again earlier this
year. The last attempt was in 2010 when it failed to reach a
reserve at Christies. Martin Biddle provided a suitable review of
the historic significance of the picture for the sale catalogue at

t hat ti me. This was i mportant
simply helped to increase its sale value with the owner
apparently now seeking £1M! There was an export ban on the
picture leaving UK which seems to have been slightly extended
so we await the result of the appeal.

Lecture Diary

October 5th A-Z of Wartime by Amy Graham
November 2nd The History of AC Cars by John Spencer

December7th Chri st mas Member sd Tal ks

Meetings are held on the first Wednesday of each month at St.
Marydés Church Hall, London Road,

Doors open 7.45 for 8pm start. Members free, visitors £4, includes
refreshments.
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June Meeting & Epsom College and the First World War - Alan Scadding
Jeff Cousins

Given the centenaries of the Somme and Jut
College was changed from the medical profession to the First World War.

When Alan first joined the college over 30 years ago, commemoration of Rememberance
Day had been a fairly low -key affair, but now it has become much more significant.

Epsom College had been founded in 1855, with a view to helping the orphans and widows
of doctors, and providing the doctors of the future. Discipline collapsed though,

culminating in the 0Great Re b el | iRevnart -&rhith, 1
arrived in 1889 and imposed tough discipld:i
opened in 1896, and the Rifle Corps was r
improved, but pupil numbers remained below 300. In 1910 the college was relaunched as
OEpsom Coll egebd, a more mainstream public
headmaster.

In 1909 the Rifle Corps had become an Officer Training Corps (OTC). Pupils tended to
join the 5t Battalion of the East Surrey Regiment, based at Kingston upon Thames.
Pupils in the OTC were away at a training camp in Tidworth when war was declared in
1914. 231 Old Epsomians joined up within a month, some in the University and Public
Schools Brigade (UPSB). The billeting of thousands of the UPSB in Epsom, until a camp
became ready for them in the grounds of the RAC at Woodcote Park in February 1915,
brought much income to the town. In January 1915 over twenty thousand men gathered
in blizzard conditions on Epsom Downs for an inspection by Lord Kitchener, but he only
stayed for a few minutes, and many men collapsed due to the cold. In May 1915 the
UPSB moved on to Clipstone Camp in Nottinghamshire, but in September 1915
Woodcote Park Camp became the Canadian Convalescent Hospital, plus other regiments
were stationed there during 1916 -7.

Il n the OFog of War 6, the public had few
progressing. The press was tightly controlled. The carnage on the first day of the
Somme was not reported. To some extent this was counter -productive, as fears of

Zeppelins and spies became exaggerated.
aims were published in October 1916. Some information was provided following on from
t his, but with much o0spinéd. Ot her c odnkiilaira i

Belloc was free to lecture at Epsom College on the true situation of the war, and letters
from the front back to the college magazine gave surprising detail about troop
movements.

The war caused problems in obtaining sufficient food for the college. Prices went up, and
the college had two meat -less days a week. Rationing was introduced to improve
fairness. Offers of the boys helping at local farms were turned down, so they went on
their own farming camp to Stow -on-the-Wold.

Although at the start of the war the college only had a roll of 276 boys, 957 Old
Epsomians went on to serve, and 155 died. Alan went on to give brief details of some
who served o} some died, some survived. For example:
Roland Bradford V.C., M.C., both became the youngest ever general in the British Army

(a Brigadier General) and died at the age of 25.
Major Hugh Glyn Hughes of the RAMC, recommended for the V.C. three times. He went
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on to organise the relief of the Bergen -Belsen concentration camp at the end of the
Second World War.

In 1917 the headmaster Rev. Barton shocked the college by marrying a wealthy
suffragette of German extraction, and asking for a greater salary, which was refused.
After a dispute about the masters receiving below average salaries, he resigned in 1922.

After the war there was then Spanish Flu, almost bringing teaching at the college to a
standstill by the end of 1918, though fortunately only one boy died.

It took a long time to repatriate the thousands of Canadians still at Woodcote Park at the
end of the war. In June 1919 they rioted, resulting in the death of local policeman Sgt.
Thomas Green. The | and wasndét returned to

t he

July Meeting - Archaeology of the NESCoT site 0 Industry and Magic: Quarrying
and Selective Deposition in Ewell, Surrey 0 Alexis Haslam

Jon Cotton

EEHAS members will be well aware of the wholesale redevelopment of the former
NESCoT animal husbandry site on the Ewell by -pass which is currently under way.
Fewer perhaps would have been aware of the archaeological programme that preceded it &
that is until Alexis Haslam of Pre -Construct Archaeology (PCA) gave us the edited
highlights in his surprisingly well -att ended | ecture. (Jat sam
because he was up against the Wales v Portugal Euro 2016 football semi  -final!)

Al exis outlined the results of PCAOGs exten
between February and July 2015. This followed an initial evaluation conducted by Oxford
Archaeology, which had drawn attention to the archaeological potential of the site. Given
its size and position at the foot of the North Downs above the spring line, students of
Ewel |l 6s archaeol ogy could confidently have
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here, and they were not disappointed.

Alexis noted that field walking and test -pitting carried out on the western side of a dry
valley which bi -sects the site had recovered struck flint of Mesolithic to Bronze Age date
within a thick hill wash deposit. The later flints (which comprised some 80% of the whole
assemblage) were probably associated with a Late Bronze Age/Early Iron Age drove -way
and field system aligned broadly N/S (i.e. along the valley side and within its floor), together

with several post -built fence -lines and animal pens. Traces of similar field systems have
been located elsewhere within Ewell (e.g. at Warren Farm near Nonsuch Park).

Having outlined the prehistoric evidence, Alexis then turned to the Roman features d many
of which appear to have been associated with the extraction of the North Downs chalk. A
series of three conjoined quarries in particular, accessed by a sloping ramp to the west,
measured over 42m in length, 17m in width and 3m in depth, and must have been exploited

on a semi-industrial scale & though to what end the chalk was put remains unclear. Alexis
explained that they are likely to have been dug soon after the conquest and had been back -
filled ¢ AD 120 6300. Notable finds from their fills included a stray late Iron Age Class |
potin coain.

Our speaker paid particular attention to a somewhat deeper shaft nearby which produced
substantial animal remains including parts of 67 dogs, 7 pigs and 4 foals. Coins dated the
closure of the shaft to ¢ AD 87 -100. Alongside the animals were the disarticulated remains
of up to 53 human individuals, along with a number of neonates, and the articulated
skeleton of a middle aged adult male who had been flung face -down into the centre of the
shaft along with pottery dated AD 40 -80. A bone handled iron knife lay just above him
(though Alexis nobly resisted the obvious temptation to speculate as to its exact relationship
with the body).

Other burials were found further to the west, and included a crouched adult female
inhumation cut into a ditch dated ¢ AD 120 -160, above which lay a young adult female
placed face-down. This second individual had copper alloy hook -and-eye bracelets on both
wrists, and two glass beads around her neck. Prone burial is not a normative arrangement,

and might suggest that the young woman (and also the middle aged man in the shaft) had
suffered a bad or unlucky death. Finally, a further adult female buried in the upper fill of

one of the chalk quarries was accompanied by an iron knife and a single silver coin dated c.

AD 675-710. Her grave, placed well away from the other known Saxon graves towards the
centre of the village, suggested that she t
burial.

Those members who ignored the siren calls of Euro 2016 were offered much food for thought

in a lecture crammed with excellent pictures of finds and features (some taken at altitude

by an unmanned aeri al vehicle or drone).
early industrial exploitation of the local chalk, and to the disposal of the dead 0 hitherto
something of a puzzle for the Roman period 0 were all addressed by a confident, engaging
and knowledgeable speaker. We wish him every success with the ongoing post -excavation
programme, and look forward to seeing the final report in a future number of the Surrey
Archaeological Collections.
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The conjoined chalk quarries, looking west towards their sloping access ramp, the latter re -
used by the excavators as a barrow -run.

Excavating the middle -aged adult male flung face -down in the centre of the deep chalk
shaft.




